
RFQ No. PSVAHA-2015-01 
SELECTING PARTNERS FOR A PRE-QUALIFICATION SHORTLIST TO DEVELOP 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING ON CITY LANDS 
 
RE: Information Meetings – Q & A’s (Combined from both Information Meetings) 
 
DATES:    March 27, 2015 & April 9, 2015 
 
 
 
QUESTION #1:  Is the Housing Agency going to be buying the buildings back?  
 
ANSWER: The take-out financing will be arranged by the housing operator with 
the Housing Agency enabling this process.  The arrangements for take-out financing, 
which will repay the construction financing, will be made prior to the start of 
construction.   
 
QUESTION #2: Is the Housing Agency open to looking at project teams or a 
consortium?   
 
ANSWER:  We are looking for simplicity, affordability and expedited 
delivery with appropriate risk mitigation. We are seeking partners who are 
experienced, are able to deal with complex projects and optimise delivery. Project 
teams would need to designate a “lead proponent” that the Housing Agency will deal 
with directly.   
 
QUESTION #3  Can the groups include operators? 
 
ANSWER: The Housing operators will be selected in a separate RFP process and 
will not be included for the purposes of this RFQ.  
 
QUESTION #4: Will all qualified respondents get an opportunity to bid for the 
RFPs? 
 
ANSWER:  Please refer to sections 1.5.6 and 1.5.7 in the RFQ  
 
QUESTION #5: What happens if Stage 1 goes over budget?  How will this be 
separate from Stage 2? 
 
ANSWER:  Please refer to section 1.5.9 of the RFQ 
 
 
QUESTION #6: Who retains the architect? 
 
ANSWER: The developer partner will retain the architect, but will be required to 
secure rights to the architect’s work product for the City.   
 
QUESTION #7: Assuming that financing is in place before the project 
commences, who will deal with the financial partners – Housing Agency or developer? 
 



ANSWER: The developer partner is responsible for securing the construction 
financing.  We recognise that this is City land and we are looking at ways in which the 
construction finance can be secured to enable the lowest interest rate. This will be 
clarified in the site-specific RFPs. The Housing Agency will seek to facilitate 
discussions with other levels of government, funders and housing operators to secure 
the take-out finance.  The City will not be providing financial guarantees. 
 
QUESTION #8: What is the range in size of sites? 
 
ANSWER: Smaller sites can yield up to 50 units; larger sites can yield in excess of 
300 units.  Depending upon the sites, there may also be an option for a 
commercial/retail component. 
 
QUESTION #9: Will buildings be primarily wood-frame construction? 
 
ANSWER: Not necessarily, it will depend upon the capacity of the site and what 
the final approved form of development will be. 
 
QUESTION #10: Regarding the evaluation – submitting independently but 
everyone will be evaluated the same.  How will this work? 
 
ANSWER: Please refer to the evaluation criteria as described in the RFQ. 
 
QUESTION #11: If submission is submitted by a joint venture, would you look at 
individual people in the joint venture separately and would you break up the joint 
venture by only selecting individuals from the joint venture to go forward? 
 
ANSWER: Joint ventures would be evaluated together and would not be split up.   
 
QUESTION #12: Is there a defined role for BC Housing in this process? 
 
ANSWER: The Housing Agency is in discussions with BC Housing to determine what 
role they can play including providing low interest financing and long term funding. 
 
QUESTION #13: What is the role of the housing operator through the design 
process? 
 
ANSWER: There will be a separate RFQ for a housing operator who will have input 
in the design process through the Housing Agency.  
 
QUESTION #14: Where there are retail spaces in the project, who will own this 
space? 
 
ANSWER: The retail space will be generally be owned by the City and managed as 
part of the City’s Property Endowment Fund (PEF), but the Housing Agency will 
consider other options that improve affordability. 
 
QUESTION #15: Will supportive housing play a big role in these projects or will 
they be mainly rental housing? 
 



ANSWER: The majority of the sites will be affordable market rental units with a 
range of affordability.  However, where funding and support services are available, the 
Housing Agency would seek to integrate supportive units where possible.  Projects may 
include affordable homeownership and market sale units, in the event that sufficient 
funding is not available to support the affordable rents. 
 
QUESTION #16: Will all of the sites need to be rezoned? 
 
ANSWER: The majority of the sites will need to be rezoned, though some will be 
developed through the DP process. 
 
QUESTION #17: Will there be a City process to fast track the rezoning process? 
 
ANSWER: Yes, building affordable housing is a Council priority and the Housing 
Agency will be working with the various City departments to find efficiencies in the 
rezoning and development approval process to expedite the delivery program. 
 
QUESTION #18: Will DCL’s be waived on these projects? 
 
ANSWER: Please see below: 
 
(a) DCL’s can be waived on construction of for-profit affordable rental housing (subject 
to meeting the DCL By-law definition and requirements of for-profit affordable rental 
housing).  Visit Vancouver.ca/RENTAL100 for more information. 
 
(b) DCL’s do not apply to social housing (subject to meeting DCL By-law definitions and 
receiving clearance from the Housing Centre).  
 
For reference, please refer to the following links for more information:  
 
http://former.vancouver.ca/bylaws/9755c.PDF 
 
http://vancouver.ca/files/cov/Development-Cost-Levies-Bulletin.pdf 
 
 
QUESTION #19: Can DCL’s be waived on the commercial space? 
 
ANSWER: No. 
 
QUESTION #20: What is the expectation for sustainability, livability requirements 
in these projects? 
 
ANSWER: Projects will be expected to comply with the City of Vancouver standard 
regulations for these requirements. 
 
QUESTION #21: Will certain guidelines, criteria be provided by the Housing 
Agency for the construction specifications? 
 
ANSWER: Housing Agency will provide Housing Design and Technical Guidelines, 
which are similar to the BC Housing specifications.  Any changes that improve 

http://former.vancouver.ca/bylaws/9755c.PDF
http://vancouver.ca/files/cov/Development-Cost-Levies-Bulletin.pdf


affordability, quality and delivery will be subject to agreement with the Housing 
Agency. 
 
QUESTION #22: When will the housing operator procurement process start? 
 
ANSWER: Anticipated start date is June 2015. 
 
QUESTION #23: Will the selection of the housing operator occur before the 
developer is selected? 
 
ANSWER: The selection of the housing operator will usually occur before the 
developer is chosen or the selection of both the housing operator and developer may 
occur concurrently. 
 
QUESTION #24: Will the Housing Agency entertain the idea of one group 
comprised of an operator and developer? 
 
ANSWER: Yes, however the housing operator will be selected in a separate RFQ 
process.  The developer partner can submit a response to the RFQ - Housing Operator 
request when that RFQ is issued. 
 
QUESTION #25: Do housing operators have to be non-profit agencies? 
 
ANSWER: We will consider all types of housing operators that meet the 
requirements of the housing operator RFQ and achieve the Housing Agency objectives.  
Proponents should note that a nominal rental rate is considered to be a grant under 
the Vancouver Charter, therefore, the City may only enter into a ground lease at 
nominal rent with a non-profit housing provider who can qualify as a grant recipient.  
Housing operators that do not qualify for nominal rent would be subject to market 
rental rates for the ground lease. 
 
QUESTION #26: What is the current status of these sites?  Are they vacant sites, 
improved with buildings? 
 
ANSWER: It varies.  Some are vacant sites; some are improved with single-family 
dwellings or commercial buildings. The Housing Agency will provide vacant sites for 
development and the Housing Agency will work with the City to relocate any 
residential tenants as required. 
 
QUESTION #27: Are there opportunities to rezone, ie mixed-use? 
 
ANSWER: Yes, many of the sites will be rezoned and some sites will likely be 
rezoned to permit a mixed-use building.  The Housing Agency may also consider home 
ownership to help with the rental piece to achieve affordability. 
 
QUESTION #28: Will sites be leased under a 99 year lease? 
 
ANSWER: The typical period will be 60 years. The Housing Agency may consider a 
shorter or longer term if this improves affordability, amount of housing and delivery. 
 



QUESTION #29: Would the City consider selling the freehold interest of the land 
with a rental covenant? 
 
ANSWER: No. 
 
QUESTION #30: Has the Phase 1 Environmental testing be completed yet on all of 
the sites? 
 
ANSWER: Some of the sites have been completed, and there is still some work to 
be done on the other sites.  The sites will be provided as clean sites for development 
by the Housing Agency. 
 
QUESTION #31: Once the shortlist group has been selected, will it be opened up 
again? 
 
ANSWER: No, once this RFQ is closed, only those shortlisted will be able to bid on 
the RFPs going forward.  The success of the RFQ will be reviewed after the first year 
by the Housing Agency Board. 
 
QUESTION #32: Any indication of where sites are located? 
 
ANSWER: The sites are located all over the city, though not many are located on 
the west side. 
 
QUESTION #33: What are the payment terms for the development partner?  The 
developer will be securing the construction financing, how will this be repaid, ie, at 
certain intervals, at the end of construction? 
 
ANSWER: This is dependent upon many factors including what the construction 
loan amount is, what funding commitment has been confirmed by BC Housing, etc. The 
repayment schedule for the construction financing will be finalized prior to 
construction. 
 
QUESTION #34: Is the Housing Agency looking for detailed project drawings in 
the Response? 
 
ANSWER: No, at this stage, understanding how much effort, time and expense can 
go into detailed drawings; the Housing Agency is only looking for basic project 
sketches and submission of the responses to the exercises as per the RFQ. 
 
QUESTION #35: If there are further questions, who should we speak to at the 
Housing Agency? 
 
ANSWER: All questions should be submitted to the Housing Agency in writing by 
emailing admin@vaha.ca.  All Q & A’s which are received will be posted on the Agency 
website at http://vancouver.ca/your-government/vancouver-affordable-housing-agency.aspx.  
Respondents are reminded that they should only rely on the written responses and not 
on the verbal responses provided during the Information Meetings.   
 

mailto:admin@vaha.ca
http://vancouver.ca/your-government/vancouver-affordable-housing-agency.aspx


QUESTION #36: Will each section of the evaluation scoring be weighted and what 
is this weighting? 
 
ANSWER: The RFQ has set out our expectations and our goal is to select partners 
who we can work with to expedite delivery and maximise affordability.  The Housing 
Agency would prefer not to provide details around the evaluation and weightings at 
this time. 
 
QUESTION #37: Will the amount of approved developers be limited? 
 
ANSWER: No, there is no limit.  Respondents will be evaluated as per the criteria 
in the RFQ.  If there is a large number of qualifying proponents, the Housing Agency 
may consider a two-phased approach, which will lead to a shortlist of Proponents to 
whom will be offered site-specific RFP’s. 
 
QUESTION #38: Construction costs can vary quite a lot.  For the development 
exercises in the RFQ, are we to assume that the project is required to be built to LEED 
Gold standards and complete the exercise with that assumption in mind? 
 
ANSWER:  The City prefers LEED Gold.  Please specify in the response to the 
exercises whether or not you have taken LEED Gold considerations into account.  If you 
have not assumed LEED Gold building construction standards and costs, please 
describe the variance in construction costs between non-LEED Gold 
standards/construction costs and LEED Gold standards/construction costs. 
 
QUESTION #39: What heating systems will be required?  District energy systems? 
 
ANSWER: This will depend upon the City policies that apply to the particular site. 
 
QUESTION #40: When will the first RFPs roll out? 
 
ANSWER: Approximately September/November, 2015. 
 
QUESTION #41: Will the RFQ responses be kept confidential? 
 
ANSWER:  The Housing Agency will keep RFP responses confidential, subject to 
the applicable provisions of the  Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 
(British Columbia) and the Housing Agency’s right to publicly disclose information 
about or from any Response, including without limitation names and prices, in the 
course of publicly reporting to the Vancouver City Council about the RFQ, the Housing 
Agency will treat the Response (and the Housing Agency’s evaluation of it), in 
confidence in substantially the same manner as it treats its own confidential material 
and information. 
 
 


